

# Minutes of a Meeting of Warringah Council held on Tuesday, 19 October 2010 at the Civic Centre, Dee Why, Commencing at 6.00pm

#### **ATTENDANCE**

### **Members**

Cr M Regan (Mayor), and Crs V De Luca OAM, J Falinski, R Giltinan, Dr C Harris, Dr C Kirsch, V Laugesen, M Ray, J Sutton and Dr H Wilkins.

### **Officers**

General Manager (R Hart), Director Corporate Services (J Warburton), Director Community and Environmental Services (G Sloan), Director Strategic and Development Services (M Ryan), Corporate Lawyer (V Ingram), Chief Financial Officer (D Walsh), Manager Community & Safety Services (V King), Manager Strategic Planning (D Kerr), A/Manager Marketing and Communications (J Fishpool), Team Leader Governance (M Lee), Administration Officer (A Cooke), IM&T Support Officer (D Mishra).

### **NOTES**

The meeting commenced at 6.00pm adjourned at 8.00pm, resumed at 8.05pm, moved into closed session at 9.29pm, resumed in open session at 9.49pm and concluded at 10.07pm.

### **ORDER OF BUSINESS**

The Business of the meeting was dealt with in the following order:

Items 1.0, 2.0, 2.1, 2.2, 3.0, 4.0, 11.4, 11.6, Items by exception: 7.1, 8.3, 8.4, 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 and 9.5, followed by items 5.1, 6.1, 8.1, 8.2, 8.5, 8.6, 8.7, 10.1, 10.2, 11.1, 14.0, 14.1, 14.2, 14.3, 14.4, 14.5, 15.0, 11.2, 11.3 and 11.5.

### 1.0 APOLOGIES

Nil.

### 2.0 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

### 2.1 Minutes of Council Meeting held 28 September 2010

### 309/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Giltinan/ Cr Regan

That the Minutes of the Meeting of Council of 28 September 2010, copies of which were previously circulated to all Councillors be and are hereby confirmed as a true and correct record of the proceedings of that Meeting subject to:

- a) Item 9.4, Cole Classic Sun Run, the mover and seconder being recorded as Cr Falinski and Cr Ray; and point B of the original motion being removed; and
- b) Item 8.9, SHOROC Regional Directions Shaping Our Future, to record that Cr Kirsch voted for the motion and her name to be removed from voting against the motion.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 2.2 Minutes of Extraordinary Council Meeting held 6 October 2010

### 310/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Kirsch/ Cr Harris

That the Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of Council of 6 October 2010, copies of which were previously circulated to all Councillors be and are hereby confirmed as a true and correct record of the proceedings of that Meeting.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 3.0 DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Cr Sutton declared a pecuniary interest in relation to item 10.2 as she owns property in the area.

Cr Regan declared a pecuniary interest in relation to item 10.2 as he owns property in the area.

Cr Falinski declared a pecuniary interest in relation to item 10.2 as he has family that owns property in the area.

Cr Kirsch declared a non-pecuniary, non-significant interest in relation to 5.2 as she is a member of the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club.

### MOTION OF URGENCY - NSW OMBUDSMAN REPORT INTO MANLY COUNCIL

### Cr De Luca/ Cr Laugesen

That as a matter of urgency, Council considers a motion in relation to the NSW Ombudsman Report into Manly Council.

### **VOTING**

For the motion: Crs De Luca and Laugesen.

**Against the motion**: Crs Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Ray, Regan, Sutton

and Wilkins.

THE MOTION, ON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED LOST.

### 4.0 PUBLIC FORUM

THE MAYOR REQUESTED EACH SPEAKER TO ACKNOWLEDGE THEY HAD BEEN INFORMED THAT THE MEETING WAS TO BE WEBCAST LIVE AND THAT COUNCIL ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY DEFAMATORY COMMENTS MADE.

- **4.1. Mr Jack Tilburn**, asked the following question regarding proving qualifications for work positions:
  - a) Has the council installed some vital and important proofing checks for people applying for work positions to overcome fraud or intentional deception of their qualifications?
  - b) In regard to trade qualifications, are in depth proofing checks made at the trade and technical colleges mentioned by the candidates? And if not, then why not?
  - c) In regard to academic and similar degrees, are there in depth proofing checks of qualifications carried out before appointments?

- d) Are persons being appointed to work positions without in depth proofing checks of qualifications carried out before appointments?
- e) Are any supporting character references and past work positions being given indepth proofing investigations to overcome any attempts at FRAUD OR INTENTIONAL DECEPTION? If not, then why not?

#### Answer:

Council has an internal recruitment procedure that requires all new staff to present their original qualifications for verification and if they can't provide those qualifications then we always contact the academic institution and get them to verify those qualifications. There are a large number of positions in Council that require police record checks and we conduct police record checks to do with those positions which may handle cash or linked to finance which range from cashiers at Warringah Aquatic Centre to Procurement Staff and tender contract managers. We also have Working with Children checks which is mandatory for all staff that may be working with children. We also (which is part of the recruitment procedure) do a100 point identification check and original identification has to be sighted and copies obtained to make sure the person is who they say they are.

In terms of checking on trades we actually don't have at Warringah Council positions for trades people they are outsourced. In relation to in depth proofing checks if someone can't satisfy the proofing checks in relation to qualifications then they won't be employed.

And in terms of character references – two supporting character references must be provided and typically they are the last employer or supervisor and their previous employment plus one other at a minimum requirement.

We also have a standard for questioning referees which ensures that we ask questions such as would you employ them again or is there any issues that Council should be aware of.

**4.2. Ms Julie Elliott** made a statement regarding the maintenance of a reserve in Narraweena.

#### Answer:

Council can confirm that the last time the reserve was mowed was in August and the next is October – it was due to be mowed this week but due to the rain and the sloping descent it is unsafe for contractors to mow it. As soon as it dries the land will be mowed and Council can confirm that we are absolutely committed to mowing that reserve eight times per year.

- **4.3. Mr Mike Crawford**, representing Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Centenary Committee addressed Item 5.2 on the agenda.
- **4.4. Mr Merv Carruthers** addressed Item 11.6 on the agenda.
- **4.5. Mr Anthony Petrolo**, addressed Item 11.7 on the agenda.
- **4.6. Mr Ben Cornelius** addressed Item 11.7 on the agenda.

### PROCEDURAL MOTION - EXTENSION OF TIME

### 311/10 **RESOLVED**

#### Cr Kirsch/ Cr De Luca

That Mr Cornelius be granted an extension of 3 minutes to address Council.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray, Sutton

and Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Crs Falinski and Regan.

### 11.4 Notice of Motion No 57/2010 Active Travel Community Committee

(BP REF 141)

AT THIS STAGE THE MOVER ADVISED THAT THE MOTION HAD BEEN WITHDRAWN.

### 11.6 Notice of Motion No 59/2010 Relocation of Second War Memorial at Manly Dam

(BP REF 143)

AT THIS STAGE THE MOVER ADVISED THAT THE MOTION HAD BEEN WITHDRAWN.

### PROCEDURAL MOTION - AMENDMENT TO ORDER OF BUSINESS

312/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Falinski/ Cr Sutton

That the Order of Business be amended so that certain items can be dealt with by exception, with the recommendations being adopted.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### PROCEDURAL MOTION - ITEMS MOVED BY EXCEPTION

### 313/10 **RESOLVED**

#### Cr Falinski/ Cr Sutton

That the recommendations of the Director in each of the following Items, 7.1, 8.3, 8.4, 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 and 9.5 be adopted.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 5.0 MAYORAL MINUTES

### 5.1 Mayoral Minute No. 20/2010 General Manager Performance Review Panel

(BP REF 1)

### 314/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Regan/ Cr Falinski

- A. That Council adopts the motion to nominate Councillor Ray as the outgoing Deputy Mayor to participate on the General Manager Performance Review Panel for the 2009 –2010 performance period final review.
- B. That Council adopts the motion to determine the composition of the Panel for the 2010-2011 performance period to consist of the Mayor; two Councillors nominated by Council and one Councillor nominated by the General Manager.
- C. That Council elects Councillors Ray and Falinski as the two Councillor representatives to participate on the General Manager Performance Review Panel for the period 2010-2011.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.



### 5.2 Mayoral Minute No 21/2010 Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club – Centenary Celebrations

(Report not contained in the Agenda)

### 315/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Regan

That Council:

- a) Advise the Club that Council would like to provide in-principle support to the Club to celebrate this historic event;
- b) Staff will work with the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club to develop and host a Civic event at the end of 2012 or early 2013 to mark the occasion of their 100 years service to this community.
- c) Staff will explore options with Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club with the aim of hosting an exhibition of memorabilia and photographs at an appropriate Council venue; and
- d) Make funding to be made available in 2012/2013 to assist the Club with both these events in the 2012/13 Civic Events Budget.

#### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 6.0 GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORTS

### 6.1 Minutes of the SHOROC Inc Special General Board Meeting held 29 September 2010

(BP REF 9)

### Cr Ray/ Cr Kirsch

That the item be deferred to the next Council Meeting to enable consideration of the SHOROC Inc Board Meeting Minutes and Recommendations of 18 August 2010 in the first instance.

### **AMENDMENT**

### Cr Wilkins/ Cr Sutton

That the Minutes of the SHOROC Incorporated Special General Board Meeting of 29 September 2010 be noted and the recommendations contained therein be noted.

#### **VOTING**

For the amendment: Crs Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

**Against the amendment**: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen and Ray.

THE AMENDMENT, UPON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED LOST.

### 316/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Ray/ Cr Kirsch

That the item be deferred to the next Council Meeting to enable consideration of the SHOROC Inc Board Meeting Minutes and Recommendations of 18 August 2010 in the first instance.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs Giltinan, Kirsch, De Luca, Ray, Harris, Laugesen.

**Against the resolution**: Crs Regan, Sutton, Falinski and Wilkins.

### 7.0 CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION REPORTS

### 7.1 Monthly Funds Management Report September 2010

(BP REF 15)

### 313/10 **RESOLVED**

- A. That the report indicating Council's Funds Management position be received and noted.
- B. That the Certificate of the Responsible Accounting Officer be noted and the report adopted.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)



### 8.0 STRATEGIC AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIVISION REPORTS

### 8.1 Draft Community Engagement Policy and Matrix

(BP REF 21)

### Cr Kirsch/ Cr Laugesen

- A. That the draft Community Engagement Policy matrix and toolkit be placed on public exhibition for 28 days in a revised version and the participation level for level 2 "High Impact Local" be adjusted to include "Collaborate" and "Empower"
- B. That following public exhibition, a further report be submitted to Council to enable consideration of i) submissions and ii) adoption of the final Community Engagement policy
- C. That the Community Engagement research report and focus group notes are made available as supporting documents for the public exhibition.

### **AMENDMENT**

### Cr Falinski/ Cr Regan

- A. That the draft Community Engagement Policy, matrix and toolkit is placed on public exhibition for 28 days
- B. That following public exhibition, a further report be submitted to Council to enable consideration of i) submissions and ii) adoption of the final Community Engagement policy
- C. That the Community Engagement research report and focus group notes are made available as supporting documents for the public exhibition.

### **VOTING**

For the amendment: Crs Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

**Against the amendment**: Crs De Luca, Kirsch, Laugesen and Ray.

THE AMENDMENT, ON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED CARRIED.

### 317/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Falinski/ Cr Regan

- A. That the draft Community Engagement Policy, matrix and toolkit is placed on public exhibition for 28 days
- B. That following public exhibition, a further report be submitted to Council to enable consideration of i) submissions and ii) adoption of the final Community Engagement policy

C. That the Community Engagement research report and focus group notes are made available as supporting documents for the public exhibition.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Regan, Sutton, Ray and Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Crs De Luca, Kirsch and Laugesen.

### 8.2 Development and Management of Policies – Review of Policy

(BP REF 35)

### 318/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Harris/ Cr Ray

- A. That Council approves the amendments to the existing policy on Development and Management of Policies (currently titled Proposing New Policies, Amending Existing Policies and Rescinding Obsolete Policies) as reflected at Attachment A.
- B. That Councillors be informed by the General Manager as soon as practicable about any minor amendments as per clause 3.2 that have been made by him.

CR DE LUCA LEFT THE CHAMBER AT 7.27PM

CR LAUGESEN LEFT THE CHAMBER AT 7.28PM

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Ray, Regan, Sutton

and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

CRS DE LUCA AND LAUGESEN WERE ABSENT FROM THE CHAMBER DURING CONSIDERATION OF AND VOTING ON THIS ITEM.



### 8.3 Adoption of GOV-PL 130 – Code of Meeting Practice

(BP REF 42)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

That GOV-PL 130 – Code of Meeting Practice be amended to:

- i) discontinue Council to the Community Meetings
- ii) no meeting be held in January
- iii) hold Council Meetings monthly on the fourth Tuesday of each month commencing at 6.00 pm, with the exception December, where the meeting will be held on the second Tuesday of the month
- iv) add a further meeting to be held on the second Tuesday in February.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 8.4 Returns Disclosing Pecuniary Interests of Designated Persons for the Period 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

(BP REF 43)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

That the Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest Returns for designated persons for the period 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010 be received and noted.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 8.5 Changes to the Prohibition of Eggs Sourced from Caged Chickens Policy

(BP REF 44)

CR DE LUCA AND CR LAUGESEN RETURNED TO THE CHAMBER AT 7.29PM
CR FALINSKI LEFT THE CHAMBER AT 7.30PM AND RETURNED AT 7.34PM

### Cr Kirsch/ Cr Harris

That Council do not approve the amendments to the Prohibition of Eggs Sourced from Caged Chickens policy as reflected at Attachment A and continue to use Free Range Eggs.

### **AMENDMENT**

### Cr Regan/ Cr Sutton

That Council approve amendments to the Prohibition of Eggs Sourced from Caged Chickens policy as reflected at Attachment A.

WITH THE CONSENT OF THE MEETING, THE AMENDMENT WAS WITHDRAWN. IT WAS INDICATED THAT IF THE ORIGINAL MOTION WAS DEFEATED, THE AMENDMENT WOULD BE SUBMITTED AS A MOTION.

### **VOTING**

For the original motion: Crs Kirsch, Harris, Laugesen and Ray.

**Against the original motion**: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

THE MOTION, ON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED LOST.

### Cr Kirsch/ Cr Harris

That Council continues to have organic eggs where practical.

THE MAYOR RULED THE MOTION OUT OF ORDER. THE MOTION WAS WITHDRAWN.

### Cr Regan/ Cr Sutton

That Council approve amendments to the Prohibition of Eggs Sourced from Caged Chickens policy as reflected at Attachment A.

### **VOTING**

For the motion: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

**Against the motion**: Crs Kirsch, Harris, Laugesen and Ray.

THE MOTION, ON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED CARRIED.

### 319/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Regan/ Cr Sutton

That Council approve amendments to the Prohibition of Eggs Sourced from Caged Chickens policy as reflected at Attachment A.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Crs Kirsch, Harris, Laugesen and Ray.

### 8.6 Draft Brookvale Employment Lands Issues Paper

(BP REF 50)

320/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Wilkins/ Cr Falinski

That Council adopt the Draft Brookvale Employment Lands Issues Paper for Public Exhibition, with recognition of the NBCC (Northern Beaches Community College) being the only educational institution working with the area covered by the Draft Brookvale Employment Lands.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 8.7 Draft Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2010

(BP REF 53)

321/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Harris/ Cr Regan

That Council forward this report as its submission to the NSW Department of Planning (DOP).

CR LAUGESEN LEFT THE CHAMBER AT 7.58PM

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Ray, Regan, Sutton

and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

CR LAUGESEN WAS ABSENT FROM THE CHAMBER DURING CONSIDERATION OF AND VOTING ON THIS ITEM.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH CLAUSE 13.2(ii) OF COUNCIL'S CODE OF MEETING PRACTICE, THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 8.00PM. THE MEETING RESUMED AT 8.05PM WITH ALL COUNCILLORS EXCEPT CR HARRIS PRESENT.

### 9.0 COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENTALSERVICES DIVISION REPORTS

### 9.1 Minutes of Warringah Traffic Committee Meeting held 5 October 2010

(BP REF 69)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

That the Minutes of the Warringah Traffic Committee Meeting held on 5 October be noted.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 9.2 Minutes of the Manly Lagoon Catchment Coordinating Committee Meeting held 15 July 2010

(BP REF 76)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

That the minutes of the Manly Lagoon Catchment Coordinating Committee meeting held on 15 July 2010 (Attachment 1) be noted.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 9.3 Graffiti Management Plan

(BP REF 103)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

- A. That the Graffiti Management Plan at Attachment C (Attachment Booklet) be adopted.
- B. That Policy *CCS-PL 810 Graffiti* at Attachment B be adopted.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 9.4 Glen Street Theatre Fees and Charges 2011

(BP REF 117)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

That Council approve the attached Fees and Charges schedule for Glen Street Theatre for the calendar year 2011.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 9.5 Report on Public Consultation Results for the Cole Classic Sun Run

(Report not contained in the Agenda)

313/10 **RESOLVED** 

That Council acknowledge the positive feedback from the community supporting the Cole Classic Sun Run and advise the organisers of Council's support of the event.

(THIS ITEM WAS DEALT WITH EARLIER IN THE AGENDA)

### 10.0 NOTICES OF RESCISSION

# 10.1 Notice of Rescission Motion No 4/2010 SHOROC Regional Directions – Shaping Our Future, Item 8.9, 28 September 2010

(BP REF 136)

CR HARRIS RETURNED TO THE CHAMBER AT 8.06PM

### Cr De Luca/ Cr Ray

That Council's Resolution relating to Item 8.9, SHOROC Regional Directions – Shaping Our Future, BP Ref 82, passed at the meeting of the Council held on 28 September 2010 which reads as follows:

"That Council adopt the SHOROC Regional Directions – Shaping our Future for consideration in future strategic planning strategies.

That the Council contribute to the implementation of the SHOROC regional directions program." be and is hereby <u>rescinded</u>.

### CR WILKINS LEFT THE CHAMBER 8.23PM AND RETURNED AT 8.24PM

### **VOTING**

For the motion: Crs De Luca, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen and Ray.

Against the motion: Crs Falinski, Giltinan, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

THERE BEING AN EQUAL NUMBER OF VOTES, THE MAYOR USED HIS CASTING VOTE AGAINST THE MOTION, WHICH WAS LOST.

# 10.2 Notice of Rescission Motion No 5/2010 Warringah's Housing Strategy Item 14.4 28 September 2010

(BP REF 137)

CR FALINSKI, CR REGAN AND CR SUTTON LEFT THE CHAMBER AT 8.34PM DUE TO A PECUNIARY INTEREST IN RELATION TO ITEM 10.2.

IN THE ABSENCE OF THE MAYOR, THE GENERAL MANAGER CONDUCTED AN ELECTION OF A CHAIRPERSON.

CR HARRIS AND CR RAY WERE NOMINATED. OPEN VOTING BY A SHOW OF HANDS WAS CALLED FOR. CR RAY RECEIVED 4 VOTES AND CR HARRIS RECEIVED 3 VOTES. CR RAY WAS DECLARED CHAIRPERSON AND TOOK THE CHAIR.

### Cr Giltinan/ Cr Harris

That the Council's resolution relating to Item 14.4, Warringah's Housing Strategy, BP Ref C40, passed at the meeting of the Council held on 28 September 2010 which reads as follows:

"That the item be deferred and brought back to Council after the next State Election in March 2011."

be and is hereby <u>rescinded</u>.

### **VOTING**

For the motion: Crs Giltinan, Harris and Wilkins.

**Against the motion**: Crs De Luca, Kirsch, Laugesen and Ray.

THE MOTION, UPON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED LOST.

CR FALINSKI, CR REGAN AND CR SUTTON WERE ABSENT FROM THE CHAMBER DURING CONSIDERATION OF AND VOTING ON THIS ITEM.

CR FALINSKI, CR REGAN AND CR SUTTON RETURNED TO THE CHAMBER AT 9.04PM THE MAYOR, CR REGAN RESUMED THE CHAIR.

### 11.0 NOTICES OF MOTION

### 11.1 Notice of Motion No 54/2010 Campaign to Reduce the Sale of Bottled Water in Warringah

(BP REF 138)

### Cr Kirsch/ Cr De Luca

That Warringah Council:

- ban the use and provision of bottled water in Council operations and at Council events, with the exception of Australia Day.
- call on local businesses and local schools to voluntarily join the 'Warringah Go Tap'
  (working title) campaign to reduce or ban the sale and provision of bottled water and
  provide refillable water bottles and water refill stations
- launch a design competition for local schools for a campaign logo with the winning campaign logo receiving a water station for the respective school
- install 2 water stations at major locations in Warringah.

### **AMENDMENT**

### Cr Regan/ Cr Falinski

That council defer the matter until future budget discussions.

#### **VOTING**

For the amendment: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

**Against the amendment**: Crs Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen and Ray.

THE AMENDMENT, ON BEING PUT, WAS DECLARED CARRIED.

### 322/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Regan/ Cr Falinski

That council defer the matter until future budget discussions.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Ray, Regan, Sutton and

Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Crs Kirsch and Laugesen.

### 14.0 CONFIDENTIAL MATTERS – CLOSED SESSION

(BP REF 145)

323/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Regan/ Cr Sutton

- A. That, on the grounds and for the reasons stated below, the Council resolve into Closed Session to receive and consider the items identified as Confidential and listed on this Agenda as:
- Item 14.1 Supply and Delivery of Cash Handling Services
- Item 14.2 SHOROC Banking and Collection Services Tender T2010/125
- Item 14.3 RFT 2010/110 Brookvale Oval Revitalisation Works Roof Upgrades
- Item 14.4 Adoption of the Short List of Preferred Consultants to Undertake Manly Lagoon and/or Narrabeen Lagoon Flood Study (s)
- Item 14.5 Acquisition of Property

### Matters to be Discussed During Closed Session - Section 10D

- Item 14.1 Supply and Delivery of Cash Handling Services
- Item 14.2 SHOROC Banking and Collection Services Tender T2010/125
- Item 14.3 RFT 2010/110 Brookvale Oval Revitalisation Works Roof Upgrades
- Item 14.4 Adoption of the Short List of Preferred Consultants to Undertake Manly Lagoon and/or Narrabeen Lagoon Flood Study (s)
- Item 14.5 Acquisition of Property

### Grounds on which Matter Should be Considered in Closed Session – Section 10A(2)

- Item 14.1 (d) Commercial information of a confidential nature that would if disclosed:
  - i. prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it, or
  - ii. confer a commercial advantage on a competitor of the council, or
  - iii. reveal a trade secret,
- Item 14.2 (d) Commercial information of a confidential nature that would if disclosed:
  - i. prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it, or

- ii. confer a commercial advantage on a competitor of the council, or
- iii. reveal a trade secret,
- Item 14.3 (d) Commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed:
  - i. prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.
- Item 14.4 (d) Commercial information of a confidential nature that would if disclosed:
  - i. prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it, or
  - ii. confer a commercial advantage on a competitor of the council, or
  - iii. reveal a trade secret,
- Item 14.5 (c) Information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business
  - (g) Advice concerning litigation, or advice that would otherwise be privileged from production in legal proceedings on the ground of legal professional privilege

### Reason Why Matters are being considered in Closed Session – Section 10B

To preserve the relevant confidentiality, privilege or security of such information.

- B. That pursuant to Section 10A Subsections 2 & 3 and 10B of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), the press and public be excluded from the proceedings of the Council in Closed Session on the basis that the items to be considered are of a confidential nature.
- C. That the closure of that part of the meeting for the receipt or discussion of the nominated item or information relating thereto is necessary to preserve the relevant confidentiality, privilege or security of such information.
- D. That the Minutes and Business Papers including any reports, correspondence, documentation or information relating to such matter be treated as Confidential and be withheld from access by the press and public, until such time as the reason for confidentiality has passed or become irrelevant because these documents relate to a matter specified in section 10A(2).
- E. That the resolutions made by the Council in Closed Session be made public after the conclusion of the Closed Session and such resolutions be recorded in the Minutes of the Council Meeting.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Regan,

Sutton and Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Cr Ray.

THE MEETING MOVED INTO CLOSED SESSION AT 9.29PM.

THE MEETING RESUMED IN OPEN SESSION AT 9.49PM WITH ALL COUNCILLORS PRESENT.

### 15.0 REPORT OF RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN CLOSED SESSION

THE GENERAL MANAGER REPORTED ON RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN CLOSED SESSION.

### 14.1 Supply and Delivery of Cash Handling Services

(BP REF C1)

### 324/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Sutton/ Cr Wilkins

- A. That pursuant to clause 178 3 (c) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 Council delegate authority to the General Manager to enter direct negotiations with the highest ranked Tenderers, for each of the services:
- B. That Council accept the tender of TDN Group for cash collection services for the period 1 September 2010 to 31<sup>st</sup> August 2013:
  - Schedule A Collection of monies and associated services in relation to Council's 23 Parking Meters for the estimated sum of \$23,000 pa
  - Schedule B Collection of cash and associated services for council sites for the estimated sum of \$23,000 pa
  - The total value of the two agreements with TDN Group, if the extension is exercised, would be over \$184,000 over 4 years.
- C. That Council accept the option for a 12 month extension (based on satisfactory supplier performance) which may take the contract through to 31<sup>st</sup> August 2014.
- D. That Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to enter into agreements following the successful outcome of the negotiations with TDN Group for the provision of Council's Cash Collection Services.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.



### 14.2 SHOROC Banking and Collection Services T2010/125

(BP REF C7)

#### 325/10 **RESOLVED**

### Cr Sutton/ Cr Falinski

- A. That pursuant to clause 178 1 (b) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 Council decline to accept all Tenders.
- B. That pursuant to clause 178 3 (c) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 Council delegate authority to the General Manager to enter direct negotiations with the highest ranked Tenderers, for each of the services:
  - Commonwealth Bank of Australia for the provision of Banking Services;
  - Australia Post for the provision of Agency Collection Services; and
  - Australia Post and Commonwealth Bank of Australia for the provision of Phone and Internet Collection Services

for the period 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2014 with an option for a 3 x 12 months contract extension based on satisfactory supplier performance.

C. That Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to enter into agreements following the successful outcome of the negotiations.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 14.3 RFT 2010/110 - Brookvale Oval Revitalisation Works - Roof Upgrades

(BP REF C14)

326/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Wilkins/ Cr Giltinan

- A. That Council accept the Tender and delegate to the General Manager the authority to enter into a contract with **Murphy's Facilities Services Pty. Ltd** to undertake works to the existing stand roofs and structures, as specified in RFT 2010/110, and in accordance with their tender submission, for the total contract price of \$1,418,936.37 exclusive of GST.
- B. This amount equates to \$1,289,942.15 ex GST for the contract sum, and a 10% contingency amount (\$128,994.22 ex GST).

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Ray, Regan, Sutton

and Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Cr Laugesen.

## 14.4 Adoption of the Short List of Preferred Consultants to Undertake Manly Lagoon and/or Narrabeen Lagoon Flood Study(s)

(BP REF C26)

327/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Wilkins/ Cr Ray

That Council:

- A. Approve the following consultants, WMA Water, Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd, BMT WBM Pty Ltd, to be invited through Tenderlink to selectively tender to undertake the Narrabeen Lagoon and / or Manly Lagoon Flood Study(s).
- B. Delegates to the Director Community and Environmental Services the signing of notification letters to all companies that submitted an Expression of Interest to complete the Narrabeen Lagoon and/or Manly Lagoon Flood Study(s) informing them of the outcome of the Expression of Interest evaluation.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 14.5 Acquisition of Property

(BP REF C33)

328/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Regan/ Cr Sutton

- A. That Council delegate to the General Manager authority to negotiate and agree the amount of compensation and costs payable to Bluejay Holdings Pty Ltd for the acquisition of Lot 102 DP 1104837.
- B. That Council delegate to the General Manager authority to execute the necessary documentation in order to give effect to this resolution.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen, Ray,

Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

Against the resolution: Nil.

### 11.2 Notice of Motion No 55/2010 Community Garden at Brookvale Playground

(BP REF 139)

### Cr Kirsch/ Cr Ray

- 1. That Warringah Council investigate the interest in the local community surrounding the Park and Playground at Old Pittwater Road, Brookvale in the establishment of a community garden in this location via a survey of all residences within 750 meters of the site.
- 2. That in the case that community interest is ascertained, Warringah Council amend the design if possible with the objective to maximise consolidated green space for potential use as a Community Garden, and call for expressions of interest from community members to establish a community garden committee to develop a community garden in this location.

### AT THIS STAGE, THE MOVER, WITH THE CONSENT OF THE SECONDER, AMENDED THE MOTION TO READ:

- 1. That Warringah Council investigate the interest in the local community surrounding the Park and Playground at Old Pittwater Road, Brookvale in the establishment of a community garden in this location via a survey of all residences within 750 meters of the site.
- 2. That in the case that community interest is ascertained, Warringah Council amend the design if possible with the objective to maximise consolidated green space for potential use as a Community Garden, and call for expressions of interest from community members to establish a community garden committee to develop a community garden in this location.
- 3. That Brookvale TAFE students and teachers be invited to take part in the design and construction as appropriate.

### **VOTING**

For the motion: Crs De Luca, Harris, Kirsch, Laugesen and Ray.

Against the motion: Crs Falinski, Giltinan, Regan, Sutton and Wilkins.

THERE BEING AN EQUAL NUMBER OF VOTES, THE MAYOR USED HIS CASTING VOTE AGAINST THE MOTION WHICH WAS LOST.

### 11.3 Notice of Motion No 56/2010 Council Not to Conduct Business With Burma

(BP REF 140)

330/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Sutton/ Cr Regan

That:

Warringah Council will not, as far as possible, purchase goods or services provided by companies who conduct their business in Burma, or with Burma, until democracy has been restored there and human rights violations have ceased.

CR LAUGESEN LEFT THE CHAMBER AT 9.55PM.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Regan, Sutton and

Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Cr Ray.

CR LAUGESEN RETURNED TO THE CHAMBER AT 9.56PM

CR LAUGESEN WAS ABSENT FROM THE CHAMBER DURING CONSIDERATION OF AND VOTING ON THIS ITEM.

### 11.5 Notice of Motion No 58/2010 Councillor Meal Allowance

(BP REF 142)

331/10 **RESOLVED** 

### Cr Falinski/ Cr Harris

That the General Manager investigate the impact of reducing the Councillor meal allowance by half, and reallocating that money to the Meals on Wheels program or another not for profit program that provides food to people who are home bound in the Warringah area.

### **VOTING**

For the resolution: Crs De Luca, Falinski, Giltinan, Harris, Kirsch, Regan and Wilkins.

**Against the resolution**: Crs Laugesen, Sutton and Ray.

	The meeting co	oncluded at 10.07pm	
	and attachments ng 2010/13 of Warring	numbered (26) to (3	9 October 2010
ayor		Gonora	ıl Manager



### **COUNCIL MEETING**

### 2010/13

### 19 October 2010

### REPORTS NOT CONTAINED IN THE AGENDA

Item		MP Ref
5.2	Mayoral Minute No 21/2010 Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club – Centenary Celebrations	27
9.5	Cole Classic Sun Run – Community Consultation	28-34



Mayoral Minute No 21/2010 Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club – Centenary Celebrations

5.2

### Mayoral Minute No 21/2010 Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club – Centenary Celebrations

Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club will be celebrating 100 years of service to this community in the 2012/2013 season. The Club will be staging a number of events and as part of their commemorative program, has requested Council's assistance to hold a civic reception and an exhibition of memorabilia at Dee Why Library.

### **RECOMMENDATION**

### That Council:

- (a) Advise the Club that Council would like to provide in-principle support to the Club to celebrate this historic event;
- (b) Staff will work with the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club to develop and host a Civic event at the end of 2012 or early 2013 to mark the occasion of their 100 years service to this community.
- (c) Staff will explore options with Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club with the aim of hosting an exhibition of memorabilia and photographs at an appropriate Council venue; and
- (d) Consider Funding be made available in 2012/2013 to assist the Club with both these events in the 2012/13 Civic Events Budget.

**MAYOR** 

Michael

Michael Regan

Item 9.5 Cole Classic Sun Run - Community Consultation - Final Report

9.5

### **Cole Classic Sun Run - Community Consultation**

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

### **Purpose**

To present to Council the outcomes from Community Consultation relating to the request to stage the Cole Classic Sun Run on the 5 February 2011 starting at Dee Why Beach Reserve and finishing in the Manly Local Government Area at Manly Beach.

### **Summary**

Council resolved at the meeting 28 September 2010 to support in principle Fairfax Events proposal to conduct the Cole Classic Sun Run and to put the proposal on public display to assess public support for the event.

During the 14 day public exhibition period a total of 28 submissions were received from the community. Of the 28 submissions received, 27 submissions supported the event with 1 submission against.

### **Financial Impact**

If the proposed event is supported a booking fee of \$7,618 inclusive of GST and cost recovery of Council services will apply.

### **Policy Impact**

Nil.

### RECOMMENDATION OF DIRECTOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

That Council acknowledge the positive feedback from the community supporting the Cole Classic Sun Run and advise the organisers of Council's support of the event.



Item 9.5 Cole Classic Sun Run - Community Consultation - Final Report

### REPORT

### **Background**

Council received a request from Fairfax Events, the company responsible for organising the Sun Herald City to Surf Race, to stage a similar event over a shorter distance of 7 kilometres from Dee Why Beach to Manly Beach. Fairfax Events has approached both Manly and Warringah Councils seeking support before the traffic management plan is prepared and subsequently submitted to the traffic committee and NSW Roads and Traffic Authority for approval.

A report was presented at 28 September 2010 Council Meeting describing the proposal, relevant issues and conditions, the planned route of the event and appropriate fees and charges.

At the meeting on 28 September 2010 Council resolved to:

- A. Accept in principle support for the Cole Classic Sun Run
- B. Place the proposed event on public exhibition for a minimum 14 days to assess public support and then return to Council for consideration.

Following this resolution, the proposal was placed on public exhibition for the recommended 14 day period.

### Consultation

The consultation period commenced on 1 October 2010 and finished on 15 October 2010 requesting feedback from the community regarding the proposal. Actions taken during this time included:

- Advertisement in the Manly Daily through the Warringah Update column
- Placement of proposal on Warringah Council website "public comment" section
- Display of proposed route and associated documentation at Council's Customer Service Centre and Dee Why Library.

At the closure of the consultation period a total of 28 submissions had been received. Of the 28 submissions received, 27 submissions supported the event with 1 submission against. A copy of all submissions can be seen in attachment A.

### **Timing**

There was a potential clash with Dee Why Ocean Swim which was originally proposed for 5 February 2011. Fairfax Events supplied a letter from the President Dee Why Lifesaving Club indicating their support for the Cole Classic Sun Run and willingness to postpone the Dee Why Ocean Swim until later in 2011.

### **Policy Impact**

Nil.

Item 9.5 Cole Classic Sun Run – Community Consultation – Final Report

### **Financial Impact**

If the proposed event proceeds a booking fee of \$7,618 inclusive of GST and cost recovery of Council services will apply.

Manager - Parks, Reserve and Foreshore



For/ Against	Comments
For	Just wanted to drop a line regarding a fun run from Dee Why to Manly. I think fun runs of this nature add so much value to a local community, and can really excite. Plus, they are able to draw a number of people in from other council's for the day, spending their money in our stores! I think it would be great to offer a longer version though, to ensure that more serious runners are catered for. Bring it on though I say!
For	I wanted to give my opinion on the run that has been proposed and written in the Daily today that it is open for community feedback. I think it's a great idea and about time we had more outdoor stuff to do on our side of the bridge. There's the City2Surf and bridge run on the south side. The pub2pub is here but has been taken off the main road in recent years. This would give a great run to the community and what an awesome course. I live just near the start on Dee Why Parade and regularly run around the diggers (along with a lot of other people). I give it my vote and hope it gets a go for 2011.
For	I fully support the proposed Coke Classic Sun Run. This event will bring people from outside the area to warringah and the beaches during Summer. All of the local businesses along the route will benefit from additional customers and exposure. Having the event early in the morning (start at 6.00am)will have little or no impact on regular Sunday Morning traffic flow. Most of the competitors will be out of the Warringah Area within an hour of the start. Fairfax also donate a considerable amount of money raised from entry fees from these events to local charity groups like surf clubs etc.  I am a local resident of Dee Why and also part of the committee proposing the staging of the Sun Run, Fairfax Events. Although biased in saying that I would like the event to receive council approval I would like to put in my own feedback. As a Northern Beaches resident for the past 30 years I have been very lucky to grow up with the beach cultured, healthy lifestyle our area has to offer. Through my schooling I always took a keen interest in sport, playing for multiple at my school, club and district. I continued my love for sport into my university degree and career. In 2002 I was working for the Bayfield's Hotel group and was one of the main organisers for the Pub2Pub fun run. This was the last year that it was held on the main road from the Dee Why Hotel to the Newport Arms and the first year over 2,000 entrants were received. The Cole Classic Swim in Manly has allowed me to be a part of an event that brings something back to my community for the past two years. The proposed Sun Run is a way that I can give back to the community in which I grew up in and still am a part of (specifically Warringah). If you are up early enough on any day of the week you will find that the majority of the proposed course is a regular route for avid fitness buffs. People of all ages walking, running, riding, training their dogs etc. can be seen along Curl Curl, around the Diggers and on the Manly promenade. The run encapsulates the ethos of our a
For	to our community that will benefit the local business's as well as open our area as a tourist destination. I hope that the council will see the benefits of this event as I did in the research behind the proposal.

not quite the size it would be fantastic to run along the road from Dee Why to Manly and take in the beautiful site ald the way whilst joining others from the community. Through the City2Surf I raise funds for charity so it would be interesting if this event was going to have the same opportunity as well, possibly the Surf Clubs could benefit from the Thanks for our chance to comment and I look forward to the outcome and the next council meeting.  I support this proposal. I grew up in Collaroy and having this large event on the Northern Beaches would be an asset our community. The promotion of our beaches would be priceless. I believe, as it is very early in the morning, the travould not be affected.  I write today in response to the proposed Cole Classic Sun Run and the suitability of the event to start at the Dee W foreshore area. As a Dee Why local resident, a Dee Why local workplace goer, an active member of the Dee Why SLSC and a frequent visitor to the local restaurant scene on the beachfront, I can only see a positive impact on the local Warringah community by this event going ahead. Community events like this give local residents an opportunit be involved on many fronts whether it be competing, lending a hand in the organisation of the event or just merely a reason to get out and enjoy a coffee at the local cafe as the race flies past. It also allows other local community organisations to have stalls, etc setup on the foreshore area on the day so all can benefit from the event. The increat traffic for the restaurants & cafes, the high level of fundraising for the surf club, and the exposure to the Dee Why and that the Fairfax Media group would provide through their newspapers makes this event one that I will support for ye to come should it get final approval by the council to go ahead. By providing the above event helpers for the race, It yet another way the Dee Why Lifesaving movement gives back to the local community above and beyond the many hours spent making the Dee Why beach safer  I think this e	For	As ratepayers within Warringah, my wife and I would like to express our strong support for this proposed fun run from Dee Why to Manly. Sport is a huge part of life on the Northern Beaches and it is high time we had a well-organised and regular running event to allow locals to get out and compete against each other. The pub-to-pub is haphazard at best, and with the support of a sponsor such as the Sun-Herald (in whom we have no financial interest whatsoever), which has proved with the City-to-Surf that they can effectively organise and sustain such an event over a period of decades, we feel this proposal could be a winner for Warringah.
not quite the size it would be fantastic to run along the road from Dee Why to Manly and take in the beautiful site ald the way whilst joining others from the community. Through the CityzSurf I raise funds for charity so it would be interesting if this event was going to have the same opportunity as well, possibly the Surf Clubs could benefit from the Thanks for our chance to comment and I look forward to the outcome and the next council meeting.  I support this proposal. I grew up in Collaroy and having this large event on the Northern Beaches would be an asset our community. The promotion of our beaches would be priceless. I believe, as it is very early in the morning, the travould not be affected.  I write today in response to the proposed Cole Classic Sun Run and the suitability of the event to start at the Dee W foreshore area. As a Dee Why local resident, a Dee Why local workplace goer, an active member of the Dee Why SLSC and a frequent visitor to the local restaurant scene on the beachfront, I can only see a positive impact on the local Warringah community by this event going ahead. Community events like this give local residents an opportunit be involved on many fronts whether it be competing, lending a hand in the organisation of the event or just merely a reason to get out and enjoy a coffee at the local cafe as the race flies past. It also allows other local community organisations to have stalls, etc setup on the foreshore area on the day so all can benefit from the event. The increatraffic for the restaurants & cafes, the high level of fundraising for the surf club, and the exposure to the Dee Why at that the Fairfax Media group would provide through their newspapers makes this event one that I will support for ye to come should it get final approval by the council to go ahead. By providing the above event helpers for the race, It yet another way the Dee Why Lifesaving movement gives back to the local community above and beyond the many hours spent making the Dee Why beach safer  I think this even	For	I was advised of this submission to have a fun run from Dee Why to Manly. I would like to express my strong support for such an event, and would hope you will take this into consideration for your final decision.
not quite the size it would be fantastic to run along the road from Dee Why to Manly and take in the beautiful site ald the way whilst joining others from the community. Through the City2Surf I raise funds for charity so it would be interesting if this event was going to have the same opportunity as well, possibly the Surf Clubs could benefit from the Thanks for our chance to comment and I look forward to the outcome and the next council meeting.  I support this proposal. I grew up in Collaroy and having this large event on the Northern Beaches would be an asset our community. The promotion of our beaches would be priceless. I believe, as it is very early in the morning, the travould not be affected.  I write today in response to the proposed Cole Classic Sun Run and the suitability of the event to start at the Dee Why SLSC and a frequent visitor to the local restaurant scene on the beachfront, I can only see a positive impact on the local Warringah community by this event going ahead. Community events like this give local residents an opportunibe involved on many fronts whether it be competing, lending a hand in the organisation of the event or just merely a reason to get out and enjoy a coffee at the local cafe as the race flies past. It also allows other local community organisations to have stalls, etc setup on the foreshore area on the day so all can benefit from the event. The increase traffic for the restaurants & cafes, the high level of fundraising for the surf club, and the exposure to the Dee Why at that the Fairfax Media group would provide through their newspapers makes this event one that I will support for ye to come should it get final approval by the council to go ahead. By providing the above event helpers for the race, It yet another way the Dee Why Lifesaving movement gives back to the local community above and beyond the many hours spent making the Dee Why beach safer  I think this event will be a great benefit to the northern beaches. It encourages team building, increased fitness, an	For	shopkeepers, and our surf club. We need to get behind any local community events that lend a positive light; to council, to our wonderful beaches etc.
not quite the size it would be fantastic to run along the road from Dee Why to Manly and take in the beautiful site along the way whilst joining others from the community. Through the City2Surf I raise funds for charity so it would be interesting if this event was going to have the same opportunity as well, possibly the Surf Clubs could benefit from the Thanks for our chance to comment and I look forward to the outcome and the next council meeting.  I support this proposal. I grew up in Collaroy and having this large event on the Northern Beaches would be an asset our community. The promotion of our beaches would be priceless. I believe, as it is very early in the morning, the trace would not be affected.  I write today in response to the proposed Cole Classic Sun Run and the suitability of the event to start at the Dee Why SLSC and a frequent visitor to the local resident, a Dee Why local workplace goer, an active member of the Dee Why SLSC and a frequent visitor to the local restaurant scene on the beachfront, I can only see a positive impact on the local Warringah community by this event going ahead. Community events like this give local residents an opportuning be involved on many fronts whether it be competing, lending a hand in the organisation of the event or just merely a reason to get out and enjoy a coffee at the local cafe as the race flies past. It also allows other local community organisations to have stalls, etc setup on the foreshore area on the day so all can benefit from the event. The increating the restaurants & cafes, the high level of fundraising for the surf club, and the exposure to the Dee Why at that the Fairfax Media group would provide through their newspapers makes this event one that I will support for ye to come should it get final approval by the council to go ahead. By providing the above event helpers for the race, It yet another way the Dee Why Lifesaving movement gives back to the local community above and beyond the many	For	
not quite the size it would be fantastic to run along the road from Dee Why to Manly and take in the beautiful site along the way whilst joining others from the community. Through the City2Surf I raise funds for charity so it would be interesting if this event was going to have the same opportunity as well, possibly the Surf Clubs could benefit from t	For	I support this proposal. I grew up in Collaroy and having this large event on the Northern Beaches would be an asset to our community. The promotion of our beaches would be priceless. I believe, as it is very early in the morning, the traffic would not be affected.  I write today in response to the proposed Cole Classic Sun Run and the suitability of the event to start at the Dee Why foreshore area. As a Dee Why local resident, a Dee Why local workplace goer, an active member of the Dee Why SLSC and a frequent visitor to the local restaurant scene on the beachfront, I can only see a positive impact on the local Warringah community by this event going ahead. Community events like this give local residents an opportunity to be involved on many fronts whether it be competing, lending a hand in the organisation of the event or just merely a reason to get out and enjoy a coffee at the local cafe as the race flies past. It also allows other local community organisations to have stalls, etc setup on the foreshore area on the day so all can benefit from the event. The increased traffic for the restaurants & cafes, the high level of fundraising for the surf club, and the exposure to the Dee Why area that the Fairfax Media group would provide through their newspapers makes this event one that I will support for years to come should it get final approval by the council to go ahead. By providing the above event helpers for the race, It is yet another way the Dee Why Lifesaving movement gives back to the local community above and beyond the many
I am a local Warringah resident and noticed you are open for feedback on The Sun Run. After competing in the City2Surf on numerous occasions it would be great to have an event like this on the northern beaches. Whilst I hope	For	City2Surf on numerous occasions it would be great to have an event like this on the northern beaches. Whilst I hope not quite the size it would be fantastic to run along the road from Dee Why to Manly and take in the beautiful site along the way whilst joining others from the community. Through the City2Surf I raise funds for charity so it would be interesting if this event was going to have the same opportunity as well, possibly the Surf Clubs could benefit from this.

For	This sounds like a fantastic idea, great for the Warringah community, and I would love to support this proposal as well as hopefully compete.
For	I am a Warringah Council resident who also enjoys running in local & state-wide fun runs. A local 7km event would be fantastic. I give my full support to the possible new event from Dee Why to Manly.
For	I am emailing you to indicate my support and enthusiasm for this proposed event
For	I would like to write in and share my utmost support for this fun run. I am part of the Can Too running group, which has a Northern Beaches pod of runners, all of whom train for races while raising money for Cure Cancer Australia. I can guarantee you that you'd have about 30 – 50 of us VERY keen to support this local fun running initiative. As it is, there are no shorter distance fun runs in the Northern Beaches and I think this event would be a fantastic addition to the running calendar for both serious and recreational runners. It would also bring more people into the local area to spend at cafes and restaurants - a win for everyone.
For	Emailing support - nice one!
For	I am writing to support the Proposed Cole Classic Sun Run. The northern beaches would hugely benefit from a fun run in February of each year that is properly run and not just a community event. As the route follows the coastline and does not incorporate the northern beaches main access roads - either Pittwater road or Warringah Road, it would not be a huge disruption to traffic. The event being run on a Sunday early in the morning would suit runners participating and the community as the event is conducted prior to most people being awake and heading out to do weekend activities.
For	I would support this Run with great enthusiasm.
For	I wanted to give my support to the Fairfax proposal to conduct a foot race from Dee Why to Manly on Saturday 5 February 2011. These type of activities build our community and specifically encourage health and fitness both in those running and those watching. I support this event and will definitely participate if it is held.
For	I write to support the fun run from Dee Why to Manly in February, I think it is potentially a great event which will be excellent for the local community and an excellent fund raising opportunity for the local surf clubs along route. Please support this event at the next council meeting.
For	I would like to register my full support of the proposed Cole Classic Sun Run. I feel there would be a large amount of support from the Northern Beaches community and wider.
For	I have recently heard about the possibility of the Sun Run and think it sounds like a great idea! Myself and a few friends have in the past, participated in the City2Surf and also the more local Pub2Pub fun runs and we always have a great time. I have grown up all my life on the Northern Beaches and I think it would be great to have another local fun run in the area and to have a different route in the opposite direction would be great. Being a slightly shorter distance too, I think would attract more participants and encourage many families. I think we all need to be more active and enjoy the outdoors and why not do that in the best part of the Australia, the Northern Beaches!

For	I saw this on your website and although I live in Pittwater Council I think it would be great. I would definitely take part - be good to have another event on the Northern Beaches.
For	I am writing to express my support for Fairfax Events proposal to hold a Cole Classic Sun Run from Dee Why Beach to Manly Beach on Saturday 5 February. I believe this proposal would be a terrific boon for local tourism, as it would showcase the beauty of the Northern Beaches to individuals who would likely return for more on what our region has to offer. I understand the City 2 Surf is one on Bondi's busiest trading days of the year so no doubt Dee Why and Manly businesses would benefit from this event. The event would also be a positive way to bring communities together to promote an active lifestyle. I am confident that the organisers would ensure minimal impact for residents surrounding the course considering their track record in managing the hugely popular City 2 Surf. I am very happy to discuss my support in more detail, if required.
Against	For how long will those of us living east of Griffin Rd, Dee Why, be held prisoners in our garage on Saturday, February 5, 2011 for the Fun Run that starts at Dee Why Surf Club and travels south? There is no way out of the area without crossing Griffin Rd short of hiking to Dee Why Point, diving in and swimming around to Long Reef. Pretty hard when one is severely mobility compromised and cannot even use public transport
For	I, the President of the Manly Chamber of Commerce, would like to take this opportunity to provide our support for the Cole Classic Sun Run. We see this potential event as a wonderful opportunity for exposure for Manly and the Northern Beaches as a whole, while at the same time raising funds for charity. From our point of view our members would benefit from this activity but even more so we offer our support as a stakeholder in the larger community. The Manly Chamber of Commerce looks forward to the Cole Classic Sun Run. If it is anything like the original Cole classic event it is destined for success.
_	I notice in the today's Manly Daily under Council Capers that there is a proposal for the first ever Cole Classic Sun Run. It is great to see that the Northern Beaches are starting to be considered for great outdoor events such as fun runs. I currently reside at Narrabeen and see the Pub 2 Pub event going back and forth across Ocean Street towards the Newport Arms. It will be great for local residents to be able to run on the local roads and enjoy a community spirit together for a course that appears to encapsulate some of the best beaches we have to offer. Fantastic that the Council has taken the initiative to get behind an event that promotes a healthy lifestyle to our area and I hope the residents give
For	you feedback to enable that to happen.  I wish to express my strong support of the proposed 7km Sun Run to take place from Dee Why to Manly Beach. What a spectacular course! Such a scenic route is sure to bring out the runner in many people. It would be a fantastic way to contribute to the fitness and spirit of the local communities. As a local resident of Manly I have no qualms about the road closures and feel, given the short time frame, this should not pose a problem to many at all. I for one would be
For	participating in the run with family and friends. Thank you for taking the time to consider local opinions.